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RAYTHEON COMPANY

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAYTHEON COMPANY

BALANCE SHEETS (Unaudited)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
Contracts in process

Inventories

Deferred federal and foreign income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Assets from discontinued operations

Total current assets

Property, plant, and equipment, net
Goodwill, net
Other assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities

Notes payable and current portion of long-term debt
Advance payments, less contracts in process
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and wages

Other accrued expenses

Liabilities from discontinued operations

Total current liabilities

Accrued retiree benefits and other long-term liabilities
Deferred federal and foreign income taxes

Long-term debt

Mandatorily redeemable equity securities
Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sept. 29, 2002

Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

$ 619 $ 1214
440 480

3,478 3,204

2,128 2,030

597 669

151 309

83 1,631

7,496 9,537

2,324 2,196
11,170 11,370
3,524 3,572

$ 24514 $ 26675
$ 776 $ 1,363
781 883

803 910

747 573

1,178 1,529

383 550

4,668 5,808

1,221 1,283

837 563

6,088 6,874

858 857

10,842 11,290

$ 24514 $ 26675




RAYTHEON COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales $ 4,092 $ 3,755 $ 12,098 $ 11,624
Cost of sales 3,240 3,727 9,607 10,082
Administrative and selling expenses 285 287 892 853
Research and development expenses 112 105 337 350
Total operating expenses 3,637 4,119 10,836 11,285
Operating income (loss) 455 (364) 1,262 339
Interest expense 118 172 388 544
Interest income 7) 7) (24) (28)
Other expense (income), net 15 18 36 (30)
Non-operating expense, net 126 183 400 486
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes 329 (547) 862 (147)
Federal and foreign income taxes 101 (267) 262 97)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 228 (280) 600 (50)
Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations (125) (15) (671) (854)

Tax benefit 44 10 7 303

81) 5) (664) (551)

Income (loss) before extraordinary item and accounting change 147 (285) (64) (601)
Extraordinary gain from debt repurchases, net of tax — — 1 4
Change in accounting principle, net of tax — — (509) —
Net income (loss) $ 147 $ (285) $ (572) $ (597)

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operations

Basic $ 0.56 $ (0.78) $ 1.50 $ (0.14)

Diluted $ 0.56 $ (0.78) $ 1.47 $ (0.14)
Earnings (loss) per share

Basic $ 0.36 $ (0.79) $ (1.43) $ (1.71)

Diluted $ 0.36 $ (0.79) $ (1.40) $ (1.71)
Dividends declared per share $ 0.20 $ 0.20 $ 0.60 $ 0.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Cash flows from operating activities
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

RAYTHEON COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

from continuing operations, net of the effect of divestitures

Depreciation and amortization

Net gain on sale of operating units and investments

Increase in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in contracts in process

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in current deferred federal and foreign income taxes
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets

Decrease in advance payments
Decrease in accounts payable

Increase in accrued salaries and wages
(Decrease) increase in other accrued expenses
Increase in long-term deferred federal and foreign income taxes

Other adjustments, net

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from continuing operations
Net cash used in operating activities from discontinued operations

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Sale of financing receivables, net of (repurchases)

Origination of financing receivables

Collection of financing receivables not sold
Expenditures for property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, and equipment

Expenditures for internal use software

Increase in other assets
Hughes Defense settlement

Proceeds from sales of operating units and investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from continuing operations
Net cash used in investing activities from discontinued operations

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends
Decrease in short-term debt
Decrease in long-term debt
Issuance of equity security units
Issuance of common stock

Proceeds under common stock plans

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities from continuing operations
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued operations

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002

Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

$ 600 $ (50)
267 503
3 (74)
(19) (53)
(266) 146
(117) (468)
9% (245)
115 3)
(90) (263)
(77) (132)
174 112
(96) 246
263 129
155 97
1,002 (55)
(805) (454)
197 (509)
(46) 386
(257) (480)
122 78
(286) (292)
11 9
(94) (106)
(35) (6)
134 —
1,166 266
715 (145)
— (18)
715 (163)
(240) (208)
(1,363) (352)
(98) (289)
— 837
123 376
71 18
(1,507) 382
— @
(1,507) 380
(595) (292)
1,214 871
$ 619 $ 579




RAYTHEON COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited financial statements of Raytheon Company (the “Company”) have been prepared on substantially the same basis as the
Company’s annual consolidated financial statements. These interim unaudited financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on June 28, 2002. The information furnished
has been prepared from the accounts of the Company without audit. In the opinion of management, these financial statements reflect all adjustments, which are of
a normal recurring nature, necessary for a fair presentation of the financial statements for the interim periods. The financial statements for all periods presented
have been restated to reflect the disposition of Aircraft Integration Systems (AIS) as disclosed in Note 11, Discontinued Operations. Certain prior year amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

2. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following at:

Sept. 29, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

Finished goods, including used aircraft $ 639 $ 642
Work in process 1,226 1,111
Materials and purchased parts 410 424
Excess of current cost over LIFO values (147) (147)
Total $ 2,128 $ 2,030

3. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

During the first half of 2001, the Company experienced a significant decrease in the volume of used commuter aircraft sales. An evaluation of commuter
aircraft market conditions and the events of September 11, 2001 indicated the market weakness would continue into the foreseeable future. As a result, the
Company completed an analysis of the estimated fair value of the various models of commuter aircraft and reduced the book value of commuter aircraft inventory
and equipment leased to others accordingly. In addition, the Company adjusted the book value of notes receivable and off balance sheet receivables based on the
Company’s estimate of exposures on customer financed assets due to defaults, refinancing, and remarketing of these aircraft. As a result of these analyses, the
Company recorded a charge of $693 million in the third quarter of 2001 which consisted of a reduction in inventory of $158 million, a reduction of equipment
leased to others of $174 million, a reserve for notes receivable of $16 million, and a reserve for off balance sheet receivables of $345 million.

The Company also recorded a $52 million charge in the third quarter of 2001 related to a fleet of certain used general aviation aircraft. During the first three
quarters of 2001, the



Company did not sell any of these aircraft and recorded a charge to reduce the value of the aircraft to their estimated fair value. The charge consisted of a
reduction in the value of aircraft in inventory of $31 million, a reduction in the value of equipment leased to others of $14 million, and a reserve of $7 million
related to our estimate of exposures on customer financed assets due to defaults, refinancing, and remarketing of these aircraft.

4. Other Assets

In 1995, through the acquisition of E-Systems, Inc., the Company invested in Space Imaging and currently has a 31 percent equity investment in Space
Imaging LLC. Since 1996, the Company has guaranteed a portion of Space Imaging’s debt and currently guarantees 50 percent of a $300 million Space Imaging
loan facility that matures in March 2003. There were $275 million of Space Imaging borrowings outstanding under this facility at September 29, 2002. To date,
Space Imaging has purchased a significant amount of equipment from its primary investors, including the Company. The Company’s investment in and other
assets related to Space Imaging totaled $71 million at September 29, 2002. Space Imaging is pursuing its business plan, including assessments relative to future
investment in a replacement satellite system and related funding requirements. To execute its current business plan and fund future replacement satellites, Space
Imaging will likely need to obtain long-term commitments and funding from the U.S. government for purchases of commercial satellite imagery, as well as
commitments for additional investment or funding, none of which are committed at present. In light of current market conditions and those uncertainties, there
can be no assurance that Space Imaging will be successful in attracting the necessary additional funding. If the long-term commitments and additional investment
or funding do not materialize, the Company could be required to fund all or part of its obligation under the guarantee and record a charge to earnings to the extent
that any amounts invested, advanced, or paid under the guarantee are not realizable.

In March 2002, the Company formed a joint venture with Flight Options, Inc. whereby the Company contributed its Raytheon Travel Air fractional
ownership business and loaned the new entity $20 million. The Company’s investment in and other assets related to the joint venture totaled $83 million at
September 29, 2002. The new entity, Flight Options, LLC, has been pursuing additional equity financing, but has not yet secured the funds. In light of current
capital market conditions, there can be no assurance that Flight Options will ultimately be successful in attracting additional outside funding. If Flight Options is
not successful in this regard, the Company may offer to exchange the Flight Options debt it currently holds for additional equity in the joint venture, whereby the
Company could be responsible for its operations, own a majority of Flight Options, and consolidate Flight Options in its financial statements. If the Company
consolidates Flight Options, it is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations in 2002 or 2003, although the
Company would reduce its reported Aircraft backlog by approximately $850 million related to an order received from Flight Options in the first quarter of 2002.

In the second quarter of 2002, the Company agreed to provide $30 million of financing to JT3, L.L.C., a joint venture formed by the Company, under
which $17 million was outstanding at September 29, 2002. This financing is collateralized by JT3’s customer receivables.

In connection with the sale of receivables, Raytheon Aircraft Receivables Corporation, a special purpose entity, continued in existence at September 29,
2002. The outstanding balance in the Company’s off balance sheet receivables facility at September 29, 2002



was $1,115 million versus $1,448 million at December 31, 2001. No material gain or loss resulted from the sales of receivables. Since the financing facility no
longer provides any real economic benefit, the Company has decided to buy out this facility, eliminate the cost of maintaining it, and bring the related assets onto
the Company’s books. This will result in an increase to consolidated debt of approximately $1 billion (and a reduction in off balance sheet obligations of
approximately $1 billion) and will not violate the Company’s bank agreement covenants.

As described above, in the third quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a charge of $345 million for estimated exposures on customer-financed assets
included in the Company’s off balance sheet receivables facility described above due to defaults, refinancings, and remarketing of used commuter aircraft. The
balance of this reserve was $361 million at December 31, 2001. In the first nine months of 2002, the Company utilized $94 million of this reserve, leaving a
balance of $267 million at September 29, 2002.

5. Notes Payable and Long-term Debt

In the first quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased debt with a par value of $96 million and recorded an extraordinary gain of $1 million, net of tax. In
the second quarter of 2001, the Company repurchased debt with a par value of $633 million and recorded an extraordinary gain of $4 million, net of tax.

In 2001, the Company entered into various interest rate swaps that corresponded to a portion of the Company’s fixed rate debt in order to effectively hedge
interest rate risk. The $1.2 billion notional value of the interest rate swaps effectively converted approximately 15 percent of the Company’s total debt to variable
rate debt. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company closed out these interest rate swaps in order to reduce market rate risk. The swaps had a fair value of $95
million and received proceeds of $83 million in the third quarter of 2002, with the balance received in the fourth quarter of 2002. The $95 million of value will be
amortized over the remaining life of the debt as a reduction to interest expense.

The Company’s most restrictive bank agreement covenant is an interest coverage ratio that currently requires earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
and amortization (EBITDA), excluding certain charges, be at least 2.5 times net interest expense for the prior four quarters. In July 2002, the covenant was
amended to exclude charges of $450 million related to discontinued operations. The Company was in compliance with the interest coverage ratio covenant, as
amended, during the first nine months of 2002.

6. Equity Security Units

At September 29, 2002 and December 31, 2001, there were 17,250,000 equity security units outstanding. Each equity security unit consists of a contract to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock on May 15, 2004, which will result in cash proceeds to the Company of $863 million, and a mandatorily
redeemable equity security, with a stated liquidation amount of $50 due on May 15, 2006, which will require a cash payment by the Company of $863 million.
The contract obligates the holder to purchase, for $50 per share, shares of common stock equal to the settlement rate. The settlement rate is equal to $50 divided
by the average market value of the Company’s common stock at that time. The settlement rate cannot be greater than 1.8182 or less than 1.4903 shares of
common stock per purchase contract. Using the treasury stock method, there is no effect on the



computation of shares for diluted earnings per share if the average market value of the Company’s common stock is between $27.50 and $33.55 per share. During
the third quarter of 2002 the average market value was $34.00 per share, therefore, the Company included 338,000 shares related to the equity security units in its
computation of shares for diluted earnings per share. During the first nine months of 2002, the average market value was $37.64 per share, therefore, the
Company included 2.8 million shares in its computation of shares for diluted earnings per share. The contract requires a quarterly distribution, which is recorded
as a reduction in additional paid-in capital, of 1.25% per year of the stated amount of $50 per purchase contract. The mandatorily redeemable equity security pays
a quarterly distribution, which is included in interest expense, of 7% per year of the stated liquidation amount of $50 per mandatorily redeemable equity security
until May 15, 2004. On May 15, 2004, following a remarketing of the mandatorily redeemable equity securities, the distribution rate will be reset at a rate equal to
or greater than 7% per year.

7. Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity consisted of the following at:

Sept. 29, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

Preferred stock, no outstanding shares $ — $ —
Common stock, outstanding shares 4 4
Additional paid-in capital 8,060 7,723
Accumulated other comprehensive income (182) (212)
Treasury stock 3) 1)
Retained earnings 2,963 3,776
Total $ 10,842 $ 11,290
Outstanding shares of common stock 405.9 395.4

During the first nine months of 2002, the Company issued 7.1 million shares of common stock related to its savings and investment plans and 3.4 million
shares in connection with stock plan activity.

The weighted average shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In thousands)

Average common shares outstanding for basic EPS 403,675 359,406 399,780 349,776
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock 4,730 — 6,148 —
Dilutive effect of equity security units 338 — 2,795 —

Shares for diluted EPS 408,743 359,406 408,723 349,776




Options to purchase 24.3 million and 28.5 million shares of common stock for the three months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001,
respectively, and options to purchase 24.3 million and 20.4 million shares of common stock for the nine months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30,
2001, respectively, did not affect the computation of diluted EPS. The exercise prices for these options were greater than the average market price of the
Company’s common stock during the respective periods.

Options to purchase 18.4 million and 10.9 million shares of common stock for the three months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001
respectively, and options to purchase 18.4 million and 19.0 million shares of common stock for the nine months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30,
2001, respectively, had exercise prices that were less than the average market price of the Company’s common stock during the respective periods and are
included in the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock in the table above.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, in accounting
for its stock-based compensation plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for its stock-based compensation plans other than for
restricted stock. The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (SFAS No. 123), therefore, no compensation expense was recognized for the Company’s stock option plans. Had compensation expense for the
Company’s stock option plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant date for awards under these plans, consistent with the methodology prescribed
under SFAS No. 123, the Company estimates that its net income (loss) and diluted earnings (loss) per share would have approximated in the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions except per share amounts)

Net income (loss), as reported $ 147  $ (285) $ (572) % (597)
Pro forma net income (loss) 132 (297) (613) (634)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share, as reported 0.36 (0.79) (1.40) (1.71)
Pro forma diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.32 (0.83) (1.50) (1.81)

The weighted average fair value of each stock option granted in 2002, 2001, 2000, and 1999, which are included in the preceding pro forma amounts, was
estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this disclosure are not indicative of future amounts and are not
representative of the amounts that would be reported if the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 in this period as the recognition transition rules of SFAS No. 123
only apply to stock options granted during the year of transition.

The components of other comprehensive income for the Company generally include foreign currency translation adjustments, minimum pension liability
adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities classified as available-for-sale, and



unrealized gains and losses on effective hedges. The computation of comprehensive income is as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

Net income (loss) $ 147  $ (285) $ 572) $ (597)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 11 19 30 )
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 158 % 266) $ (42) $ (599)

In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company expects to record an after-tax reduction to equity of between $2.0 billion and $2.5 billion related to the
Company’s pension plans as a result of the recent weak performance of capital markets. This is a non-cash reduction that will not affect the Company’s earnings,
net debt, or bank covenants.

8. Restructuring

All previously disclosed restructuring actions have been essentially completed, except for ongoing idle facility costs for which the Company spent $4
million in the first nine months of 2002. The restructuring-related accrued liability at September 29, 2002 and December 31, 2001 was $13 million and $24
million, respectively.

9. Business Segment Reporting

The Company operates in five segments: Electronic Systems; Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems; Technical Services;
Commercial Electronics; and Aircraft. Segment net sales and operating income include intersegment sales and profit recorded at cost plus a specified fee, which
may differ from what the selling entity would be able to obtain on external sales. Corporate and Eliminations includes Company-wide accruals and over/under
applied overhead that have not been attributed to a particular segment and intersegment sales and profit eliminations. In addition, the AIS segment was
discontinued.

In the third quarter of 2002, the Company announced the realignment of its government and defense businesses into seven segments that are focused on
customer satisfaction and positioning the Company for growth. Until the end of 2002, the Company will continue to report its financial results in the former
business structure and will begin reporting financial results in the new structure beginning in 2003. The commercial segments will remain unchanged.



Segment financial results were as follows:

Electronic Systems

Command, Control, Communication and
Information Systems

Technical Services

Commercial Electronics

Aircraft

Corporate and Eliminations

Total

Electronic Systems

Command, Control, Communication and
Information Systems

Technical Services

Commercial Electronics

Aircraft

Corporate and Eliminations

Total

Net Sales Operating Income
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

$ 2,230 $ 2,014 $ 315 $ 284
1,033 945 101 94
556 524 40 38
102 101 @) (22)
451 449 1 (758)
(280) (278) — —
$ 4,092 $ 3,755 $ 455 $ (364)
Net Sales Operating Income
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

Electronic Systems

Command, Control, Communication and
Information Systems

Technical Services

Commercial Electronics

Aircraft

Corporate

Total

$ 6,541 $ 5,966 $ 910 $ 787

3,028 2,731 309 273

1,589 1,506 86 115

306 339 (12) (43)

1,471 1,854 (18) (735)

(837) (772) (13) (58)

$ 12,098 $ 11,624 $ 1,262 $ 339
Identifiable Assets

Sept. 29, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

$ 10,726  $ 10,483
5,257 5,113

1,544 1,670

660 683

3,151 3,126

3,093 3,969

$ 24,431 25,044

Intersegment sales in the three months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001, respectively, include $66 million and $70 million for Electronic
Systems, $26 million and $26 million for Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems, $164 million and $154 million for Technical Services,
$23 million and $27 million for Commercial Electronics, and $1 million and $1 million for Aircraft.



Intersegment sales in the nine months ended September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001, respectively, include $213 million and $171 million for
Electronic Systems, $81 million and $82 million for Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems, $462 million and $436 million for Technical
Services, $78 million and $80 million for Commercial Electronics, and $3 million and $3 million for Aircraft.

10. Other Income and Expense

The components of other expense (income), net were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

Gain on sale of recreational marine business $ — $ — $ — $ (38)
Gain on sale of aviation support business — — — (35)
Equity losses in unconsolidated affiliates 8 10 24 24
Other 7 8 12 19
Total $ 15 $ 18 $ 36 $ (30)

Equity losses in unconsolidated affiliates include the Company’s share of the operating losses at Space Imaging, Flight Options, and Exostar.

11. Discontinued Operations

In March 2002, the Company completed the sale of AIS for approximately $1,123 million, net, subject to purchase price adjustments. As part of the
transaction, the Company remained the prime contractor for the Airborne Stand-Off Radar (ASTOR) program and retained the responsibility for performance of
the Boeing Business Jet (BBJ) program, which is nearing completion. The Company also retained $106 million of BBJ-related assets, $18 million of receivables
and other assets, and rights to a $25 million jury award related to a 1999 claim against Learjet. As of September 29, 2002, the balance of the retained assets was
$83 million. Schedule delays, cost growth, and other variables could continue to have a negative effect on these retained assets. The timing and amount of net
realizable value of these retained assets are uncertain and subject to a number of unpredictable market forces. The Company recorded a net $2 million pretax gain
on the sale of AIS. Due to the non-deductible goodwill associated with AIS, the Company recorded a tax provision of $213 million, resulting in a $211 million
net loss on the sale of AIS.

The Company recorded a $5 million charge in the third quarter of 2002 and a $4 million charge in the second quarter of 2002 for cost growth on one of the
two BBJ aircraft not yet delivered. Also in the second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded an additional loss on disposal of AIS of $14 million, which
included a $23 million write-down of a BBJ-related aircraft owned by the Company offset by a $13 million gain resulting from the finalization of the 1999 claim,
described above. The write-down of the BBJ-related aircraft resulted from the Company’s decision to market this aircraft unfinished due to the current
environment of declining prices for BBJ-related aircraft. The Company was previously marketing this aircraft as a customized executive BBJ.



The summary of operating results for AIS was as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

Net sales $ — $ 206 % 202 $ 612
Operating expenses — 186 198 622
Operating income (loss) — 20 4 (10)

Other expense, net — — — _

Income (loss) before taxes — 20 4 (10)
Tax provision (benefit) — 2 1 8)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ — $ 18 $ 3 3 2

The components of assets and liabilities for AIS were as follows:

Sept. 29, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

Current assets $ 83 $ 495
Noncurrent assets — 1,136
Total assets $ 83 $ 1,631
Current liabilities $ 3 $ 52
Noncurrent liabilities — 16
Total liabilities $ 3 $ 68

In 2000, the Company sold its Raytheon Engineers & Constructors (RE&C) business to Washington Group International (WGI). At the time of the sale, the
Company had, either directly or through a subsidiary that it still owns, outstanding letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees of performance and
payment (the “Support Agreements”) on over 100 long-term construction contracts. The Support Agreements were provided to owners at the time of contract
award as security to the owners for the underlying contract obligations. Often the total security was capped at the value of the contract price to secure full
performance, including the payment of liquidated damages available under the contract. Some of these contingent obligations and guarantees include warranty
provisions and extend for a number of years.

In March 2001, WGI abandoned two Massachusetts construction projects, triggering the Company’s guarantees to the owners. The Company honored the
guarantees and commenced work on these projects. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company revised its estimated cost to complete (ETC) for the two projects
and recorded a charge of $74 million. The Company recorded a charge of $450 million in the second quarter of 2002 and a total charge of $814 million in 2001,
of which $633 million was recorded in the first nine months of 2001. The cost increases have resulted from declining productivity, schedule delays, misestimates
of field engineered materials, and unbudgeted hours worked on the two projects. In October 2002, the Company announced that the Company and its vendor were
pursuing a solution to fix a previously disclosed issue on turbines that developed on the two construction projects. The Company’s inability to solve the turbine-
related issues and recover turbine-related costs from the vendor in the



timeline outlined below or further deterioration in labor productivity could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.

Construction and start up activities continue on all areas of the two Massachusetts construction projects—the Mystic Station plant and the Fore River plant.
The significant milestones and expected dates related to the Mystic project include for Mystic Block 8, turbine retrofit in November 2002 and customer
acceptance in February 2003, and for Mystic Block 9, turbine retrofit in November 2002, first fire in December 2002, and customer acceptance in February 2003.
Pursuant to the contract, if the Mystic plant is not accepted by the customer by January 14, 2003, a liquidated damages payment of $68 million will be required.
This payment pre-funds the liquidated damages to the maximum amount specified by the contract. The ultimate cost impact is a function of the number of days
past January 14, 2003 a successful performance test takes place, at the contractual rate of $410,000 per day. The ETC for the Mystic plant does not include any
liquidated damages for turbine-related delays beyond January 16, 2003 since the Company believes the damages associated with the delay should be the
responsibility of the turbine vendor. The significant milestones related to the Fore River project include first fire in November 2002 and customer acceptance in
January 2003. Pursuant to the contract, if the Fore River plant is not accepted by the customer by February 25, 2003, a liquidated damages payment of $60
million will be required to pre-fund the liquidated damages to the maximum amount specified by the contract. The ultimate cost impact is a function of the
number of days past February 25, 2003 a successful performance test takes place, at the contractual rate of $180,000 per day. In both cases, the Company expects
to recover the difference between the pre-funded payment and the actual liquidated damages incurred based on successful completion of performance testing.

In May 2001, WGI filed for bankruptcy protection. In the course of the bankruptcy proceeding, WGI rejected some ongoing construction contracts and
assumed others. For those contracts rejected, the Company’s obligation to the owners depends on the extent to which the Company has any outstanding Support
Agreements. The WGI rejected contracts included four large fixed price international turnkey projects that were close to completion. As of November 1, 2002,
construction has been completed on the projects and they are now in the commercial close out and claims resolution phase. The Company recorded a charge of $4
million in the third quarter of 2002 and $14 million in the second quarter of 2002 related to warranty and startup costs associated with the last project to be
completed. In 2001, the Company recorded a total charge of $54 million, all of which was recorded in the first six months of 2001, related to these projects.
Additional risks and exposures on these projects are final resolution of commercial closeout and claims issues and collection of amounts due under the contracts.

There were also two large construction projects (Red Oak and Ilijan) on which the Company had Support Agreements that have been provisionally
accepted by the customer. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $14 million related to final reliability testing and punch list items. In the
second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $21 million resulting from a contract adjustment on one of these projects due to turbine-related delays.
In 2001, the Company recorded a total charge of $156 million, of which $72 million was recorded in the first nine months of 2001, related to these and the other
WGI construction projects on which the Company has Support Agreements. Additional risks and exposures on the two large construction projects include
equipment and subcontractor performance, punch list and warranty closeout and performance, schedule and performance liquidated damages, final resolution



of contract closeout issues, and collection of amounts due under the contracts. Additional risks and exposures on the other projects and commercial undertakings
involving Support Agreements include potential adverse claims resolution, lease exposures, availability guarantees, warranties, and non-performance or defaults
on projects assumed by WGI which are subject to the letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees described above. At September 29, 2002, the
amount of letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees, for which there were stated values, that remained outstanding was $383 million, $351
million, and $26 million, respectively, related to discontinued operations, however, additional guarantees of project performance for which there is no stated value
also remain outstanding. Of these amounts, $50 million of letters of credit and $264 million of performance bonds relate to projects assumed by WGI post-
bankruptcy (see above). Some of these contingent obligations and guarantees include warranty provisions and extend for a number of years.

The Company’s cost estimates for construction projects are heavily dependent upon third parties, including WGI, and their ability to perform construction
management and other tasks that require industry expertise the Company no longer possesses. In addition, there are risks that the ultimate costs to complete and
close-out the projects will increase beyond the Company’s current estimates due to factors such as labor productivity and availability of labor, the nature and
complexity of the work to be performed, the impact of change orders, the recoverability of claims included in the ETC, and the outcome of defending claims
asserted against the Company. A significant change in an estimate on one or more of the projects could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position and results of operations.

In accordance with the purchase and sale agreement, the Company retained the financial risks and rewards of certain claims, equity investments, and
receivables totaling $159 million that were sold to WGI. In addition, the Company retained certain obligations and liabilities totaling $88 million related to the
purchase and sale agreement. As a result of WGI’s bankruptcy filing, the realization of these various assets through WGI was no longer probable, however, the
retained obligations and liabilities could be set off against the retained assets pursuant to the terms of the purchase and sale agreement. In the second quarter of
2001, the Company recorded a charge of $71 million to write off these assets and liabilities.

In the first nine months of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $52 million for interest expense related to RE&C versus $8 million in the first nine
months of 2001. Interest expense has been allocated to RE&C based upon actual cash outflows since the date of disposition. In the first nine months of 2002, the
Company recorded charges of $29 million for legal, management, and other costs versus $6 million in the first nine months of 2001.

Liabilities from discontinued operations included current liabilities for RE&C of $380 million and $482 million at September 29, 2002 and December 31,
2001, respectively.

In the third quarter of 2002, the total loss from discontinued operations was $125 million pretax, $81 million after-tax, or $0.20 per diluted share versus $15
million pretax, $5 million after-tax, or $0.01 per diluted share in the third quarter of 2001.



In the first nine months of 2002, the total loss from discontinued operations was $671 million pretax, $664 million after-tax, or $1.62 per diluted share
versus $854 million pretax, $551 million after-tax, or $1.58 per diluted share in the first nine months of 2001.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Defense contractors are subject to many levels of audit and investigation. Agencies that oversee contract performance include: the Defense Contract Audit
Agency, the Department of Defense Inspector General, the General Accounting Office, the Department of Justice, and Congressional Committees. The
Department of Justice, from time to time, has convened grand juries to investigate possible irregularities by the Company in U.S. government contracting. Except
as noted in the following paragraphs, individually and in the aggregate, these investigations are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

The Department of Justice has informed the Company that the U.S. government has concluded its investigation of the contemplated sale by the Company
of troposcatter radio equipment to a customer in Pakistan. The Company has produced documents in response to grand jury subpoenas and grand jury
appearances have taken place. The Company has cooperated fully with the investigation. The U.S. government has not informed the Company of a final decision
with respect to this matter. An adverse decision in this matter could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

The Company is permitted to charge to its U.S. government contracts an allocable portion of the amount that the Company accrues for self-insurance.
There is a disagreement between the Company and the U.S. government about the way the Company allocated self-insurance charges for product liability risks at
Raytheon Aircraft. The government has not asserted a claim for a specific amount, but since the allocation practice at issue was adopted in 1988, the government
claim could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

The Company is involved in various stages of investigation and cleanup related to remediation of various environmental sites. The Company’s estimate of
total environmental remediation costs expected to be incurred is $138 million. On a discounted basis, the Company estimates the liability to be $86 million before
U.S. government recovery and has accrued this amount at September 29, 2002. A portion of these costs are eligible for future recovery through the pricing of
products and services to the U.S. government. The recovery of environmental cleanup costs from the U.S. government is considered probable based on the
Company’s long history of receiving reimbursement for such costs. Accordingly, the Company has recorded $40 million at September 29, 2002 for the estimated
future recovery of these costs from the U.S. government which is included in contracts in process. Due to the complexity of environmental laws and regulations,
the varying costs and effectiveness of alternative cleanup methods and technologies, the uncertainty of insurance coverage, and the unresolved extent of the
Company’s responsibility, it is difficult to determine the ultimate outcome of these matters, however, any additional liability is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

The Company is also involved in other legal matters as more fully described in “Legal Proceedings” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended



December 31, 2001. An adverse resolution of any of these matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations in the period in which they are resolved.

In addition, various claims and legal proceedings generally incidental to the normal course of business are pending or threatened against the Company.
While the ultimate liability from these proceedings is presently indeterminable, any additional liability is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

13. Accounting Standards

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities (SFAS No. 146) which nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). This accounting standard, which is effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements
No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (SFAS No. 145). This accounting standard, which is effective for fiscal
years beginning after May 15, 2002, requires, among other things, that debt extinguishments used as a part of an entity’s risk management strategy no longer meet
the criteria for classification as extraordinary items. The adoption of SFAS No. 145 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets (SFAS No. 142). This accounting standard addresses financial accounting and reporting for goodwill and other intangible assets and requires that goodwill
amortization be discontinued and replaced with periodic tests of impairment. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and is
required to be applied at the beginning of the fiscal year. Impairment losses that arise due to the initial application of this standard are required to be reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002.

In the first quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $360 million related to AIS as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle. The fair value of AIS was determined based upon the proceeds received by the Company in connection with the sale of AIS. Due to the non-
deductibility of this goodwill, the Company did not record a tax benefit in connection with this impairment. During the second quarter of 2002, the Company
completed its transitional review for potential goodwill impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142, whereby the Company utilized a market multiple approach
to determine the fair value of reporting units within the defense businesses and a discounted cash flow approach to determine the fair value of the commercial
business reporting units. As a result, the Company recorded a goodwill



impairment of $185 million pretax, $149 million after-tax, which represented all of the goodwill at Raytheon Aircraft, as a cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle. The Company has also determined that there is no impairment of goodwill related to any of its defense businesses beyond the $360 million
recorded in connection with the sale of AIS. The total goodwill impairment charge for the nine months ended September 29, 2002 was $545 million pretax, $509
million after-tax, or $1.25 per diluted share. The Company will perform the annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of each year.

The amount of remaining goodwill by segment, as determined in accordance with SFAS No. 142, was $7,641 million, $2,650 million, $856 million, and
$23 million for Electronic Systems; Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems; Technical Services; and Commercial Electronics, respectively,
at September 29, 2002.

Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted primarily of drawings and intellectual property totaling $23 million (net of $29 million of accumulated
amortization) at September 29, 2002 and $24 million (net of $34 million of accumulated amortization) at December 31, 2001. Amortization expense is expected
to approximate $2 million for each of the next five years.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill amortization was discontinued as of January 1, 2002. The following adjusts reported income from continuing
operations and basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations to exclude goodwill amortization:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Reported income (loss) from continuing operations $ 228 $ (280) $ 600 $ (50)
Goodwill amortization, net of tax — 82 — 228
Adjusted income (loss) from continuing operations $ 228 $ (198) % 600 $ 178
Reported basic EPS from continuing operations $ 056 $ 0.78) $ 150 $ (0.14)
Goodwill amortization, net of tax — 0.23 — 0.65
Adjusted basic EPS from continuing operations $ 056 $ (0.55) $ 1.50 $ 0.51
Reported diluted EPS from continuing operations $ 056 $ 0.78) % 147  § (0.14)
Goodwill amortization, net of tax — 0.23 — 0.65

Adjusted diluted EPS from continuing operations $ 056 $ (055 $ 147 % 0.51




ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Consolidated Results of Operations—Third Quarter 2002 Compared with Third Quarter 2001

Net sales were $4.1 billion in the third quarter of 2002 versus $3.8 billion in the third quarter of 2001. Sales in the third quarter of 2001 included $43
million related to businesses that have since been sold. The increase in sales was primarily due to continued sales growth in the defense businesses. Sales to the
U.S. Department of Defense were 64 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001. Total sales to the U.S. government, including foreign military sales,
were 76 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001. Total international sales, including foreign military sales, were 21 percent of sales in the third
quarter of 2002 and 2001.

Gross margin, net sales less cost of sales, in the third quarter of 2002 was $852 million or 20.8 percent of sales versus $28 million or 0.7 percent of sales in
the third quarter of 2001. Included in gross margin in the third quarter of 2001 was a charge of $745 million related to Raytheon Aircraft, described below, and
goodwill amortization of $85 million which was discontinued January 1, 2002 in accordance with SFAS No. 142, also described below. Excluding the Raytheon
Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, gross margin was $858 million or 22.8 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2001. Included in gross margin was
pension income of $24 million and $75 million in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to lower
pension income partially offset by higher volume.

Administrative and selling expenses were $285 million or 7.0 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2002 versus $287 million or 7.6 percent of sales in the
third quarter of 2001. The decrease was primarily due to the timing of business development expenditures.

Research and development expenses were $112 million or 2.7 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2002 versus $105 million or 2.8 percent of sales in the
third quarter of 2001.

Operating income was $455 million or 11.1 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2002 versus an operating loss of $364 million in the third quarter of
2001. Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, operating income was $466 million or 12.4 percent of sales in the third quarter of 2001.
Included in operating income in the third quarter of 2002 was a $20 million favorable legal settlement from a previously disclosed complaint against an acquired
company’s former actuary that was reflected in the Company’s corporate operating results. There were charges of a similar magnitude at Command, Control,
Communication and Information Systems, described below. Included in operating income was pension income of $24 million and $75 million in the third quarter
of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The changes in operating income by segment are discussed below.

Interest expense from continuing operations in the third quarter of 2002 was $118 million versus $172 million in the third quarter of 2001. In the third
quarter of 2002 and 2001, the Company allocated $22 million and $6 million, respectively, of interest expense to discontinued operations. Total interest expense
in the third quarter of 2002 was $140 million versus $178 million in the third quarter of 2001. The decrease was due to lower average debt.



Interest income in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001 was $7 million.

Other expense, net in the third quarter of 2002 was $15 million, which consisted primarily of the Company’s equity losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries,
versus $18 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in the third quarter of 2001 were the Company’s equity losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries and the
costs for final settlement of certain disputes related to prior year divestitures.

The effective tax rate was 30.7 percent in the third quarter of 2002 reflecting primarily the United States statutory rate of 35 percent reduced by foreign
sales corporation tax credits and ESOP dividend deductions. The effective tax rate was 48.8 percent in the third quarter of 2001 reflecting primarily the United
States statutory rate of 35 percent reduced by foreign sales corporation tax credits and ESOP dividend deductions and increased by non-deductible amortization of
goodwill. Excluding the effect of the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, the effective tax rate was 32.5 percent in the third quarter of 2001. The
higher effective tax rate in the third quarter of 2001 was due primarily to the write-off of nondeductible goodwill related to the sale of a majority interest in the
Company’s aviation support business in 2001.

Income from continuing operations was $228 million in the third quarter of 2002, or $0.56 per diluted share on 408.7 million average shares outstanding
versus a loss from continuing operations of $280 million in the third quarter of 2001, or $0.78 per diluted share on 359.4 million average shares outstanding.
Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, income from continuing operations was $191 million in the third quarter of 2001, or $0.53 per
diluted share. The increase in average shares outstanding was due primarily to the issuance 31,578,900 shares of common stock in October 2001 and benefit plan-
related activity.

The loss from discontinued operations, described below, was $81 million after-tax, or $0.20 per diluted share in the third quarter of 2002 versus a loss of $5
million after-tax, or $0.01 per diluted share in the third quarter of 2001.

Net income in the third quarter of 2002 was $147 million, or $0.36 per diluted share versus a net loss of $285 million, or $0.79 per diluted share in the third
quarter of 2001. Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, net income was $186 million in the third quarter of 2001, or $0.52 per diluted
share.

Electronic Systems had sales of $2.2 billion in the third quarter of 2002 versus $2.0 billion in the third quarter of 2001. The increase in sales was due to
higher volume across all business units. Operating income was $315 million in the third quarter of 2002 versus $284 million a year ago. Excluding goodwill
amortization, operating income was $333 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $12 million and $38 million in
the third quarter of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in operating income was primarily due to lower pension income offset by higher volume.

Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems had sales of $1.0 billion in the third quarter of 2002 compared with $945 million in the third
quarter of 2001. The increase in sales was due to higher volume across all business units. Operating income was $101 million in the third quarter of 2002 versus
$94 million in the third quarter of



2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, operating income was $119 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in the third quarter of 2002 was a charge related
to a dispute on a previously terminated commercial contract and a charge related to a current contract dispute that could affect the collection of amounts due. The
charges totaled $20 million. Included in operating income was pension income of $1 million and $9 million in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The decrease in operating income was primarily due to the contract charges and lower pension income offset by higher volume.

Technical Services had third quarter 2002 sales of $556 million compared with $524 million in the third quarter of 2001. The increase in sales was
primarily due to higher volume from new programs. Operating income was $40 million in the third quarter of 2002 compared with $38 million in the third quarter
of 2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, operating income was $46 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $3
million and $9 million in the third quarter of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in operating income was primarily due to lower pension income.

Commercial Electronics had sales of $102 million in the third quarter of 2002 compared with third quarter 2001 sales of $101 million. The operating loss
was $2 million in the third quarter of 2002 versus $22 million in the third quarter of 2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, the operating loss was $20 million in
the third quarter of 2001. The decrease in operating loss was due primarily to the closure of certain unprofitable businesses and cost reduction actions taken.
There was no pension income included in the third quarter 2002 operating loss versus $1 million in the third quarter of 2001.

Raytheon Aircraft had third quarter 2002 sales of $451 million compared with $449 million in the third quarter of 2001. Operating income was $1 million
in the third quarter of 2002 versus operating loss of $758 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in the third quarter of 2001 was a charge of $693 million
related to the commuter aircraft business and a charge of $52 million to write down the value of certain used general aviation aircraft. Excluding goodwill
amortization, the operating loss was $757 million in the third quarter of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $7 million and $14 million in
the third quarter of 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During the first half of 2001, the Company experienced a significant decrease in the volume of used commuter aircraft sales. An evaluation of commuter
aircraft market conditions and the events of September 11, 2001 indicated the market weakness would continue into the foreseeable future. As a result, the
Company completed an analysis of the estimated fair value of the various models of commuter aircraft and reduced the book value of commuter aircraft inventory
and equipment leased to others accordingly. In addition, the Company adjusted the book value of notes receivable and off balance sheet receivables based on the
Company’s estimate of exposures on customer financed assets due to defaults, refinancing, and remarketing of these aircraft. As a result of these analyses, the
Company recorded a charge of $693 million in the third quarter of 2001.

The Company also recorded a $52 million charge in the third quarter of 2001 related to a fleet of certain used general aviation aircraft. During the first three
quarters of 2001, the Company did not sell any of these aircraft and recorded a charge to reduce the value of the aircraft to their estimated fair value.



Nine Months 2002 Compared With Nine Months 2001

Net sales in the first nine months of 2002 were $12.1 billion versus $11.6 billion for the same period in 2001. Sales in the first nine months of 2001
included $350 million related to businesses that have since been sold. The increase in sales was primarily due to continued sales growth in the defense businesses
offset by lower volume at Raytheon Aircraft. Sales to the U.S. Department of Defense were 63 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 versus 61 percent
of sales in the first nine months of 2001. Total sales to the U.S. government in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, including foreign military sales, were 74
percent and 71 percent of sales, respectively. Total international sales, including foreign military sales, were 21 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002
versus 22 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2001.

Gross margin, net sales less cost of sales, in the first nine months of 2002 was $2.5 billion or 20.6 percent of sales versus $1.5 billion or 13.3 percent of
sales in the first nine months of 2001. Excluding the $745 million Raytheon Aircraft charge described above and goodwill amortization of $254 million, gross
margin was $2.5 billion or 21.9 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2001. Included in gross margin was pension income of $73 million and $223 million in
the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in gross margin as a percent of sales was primarily due to lower pension income.

Administrative and selling expenses were $892 million or 7.4 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 versus $853 million or 7.3 percent of sales in
the first nine months of 2001. The Company expects administrative and selling expenses to approximate 7.0 percent of sales for the full year 2002.

Research and development expenses were $337 million or 2.8 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 versus $350 million or 3.0 percent of sales in
the first nine months of 2001.

Operating income was $1.3 billion or 10.4 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 versus $339 million or 2.9 percent of sales in the first nine
months of 2001. Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, operating income was $1.3 billion or 11.5 percent of sales in the first nine
months of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $73 million and $223 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
changes in operating income by segment are discussed below.

Interest expense from continuing operations in the first nine months of 2002 was $388 million versus $544 million in the first nine months of 2001. In the
first nine months of 2002 and 2001, the Company allocated $52 million and $8 million, respectively of interest expense to discontinued operations. The Company
expects to allocate approximately $78 million of interest to discontinued operations in 2002. Total interest expense in the first nine months of 2002 was $440
million versus $552 million in the first nine months of 2001. The decrease was due primarily to lower average debt and lower weighted average cost of borrowing
due to the interest rate swaps entered into in 2001.

Interest income in the first nine months of 2002 was $24 million versus $28 million in the first nine months of 2001.



Other expense, net in the first nine months of 2002 was $36 million, which consisted primarily of the Company’s equity losses in unconsolidated
subsidiaries, versus other income, net of $30 million in the first nine months of 2001. Included in the first nine months of 2001 were pretax gains of $38 million
related to the divestiture of the Company’s recreational marine business and $35 million related to the divestiture of a majority interest in Raytheon Aerospace.
These amounts were offset by the Company’s equity losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries and the costs for final settlement of certain disputes related to prior year
divestitures.

The effective tax rate was 30.4 percent in the first nine months of 2002 reflecting primarily the United States statutory rate of 35 percent reduced by foreign
sales corporation tax credits and ESOP dividend deductions. The effective tax rate was 66.0 percent in the first nine months of 2001 reflecting primarily the
United States statutory rate of 35 percent reduced by foreign sales corporation tax credits and ESOP dividend deductions and increased by non-deductible
amortization of goodwill. Excluding the effect of the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, the effective tax rate was 33.5 percent in the first nine
months of 2001. The higher effective tax rate in the first nine months of 2001 was due primarily to the write off of nondeductible goodwill related to the sale of a
majority interest in the Company’s aviation support business in 2001. In the first nine months of 2002, the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards that expire
in 2020 and 2021 decreased by approximately $500 million as a result of the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 2002, which permitted the Company to
carry back losses to 1996 and receive a $156 million tax refund in 2002.

Income from continuing operations was $600 million in the first nine months of 2002, or $1.47 per diluted share on 408.7 million average shares
outstanding versus a loss from continuing operations of $50 million in the first nine months of 2001, or $0.14 per diluted share on 349.8 million average shares
outstanding. Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, income from continuing operations was $567 million in the first nine months of
2001, or $1.62 per diluted share. The increase in average shares outstanding was due primarily to the issuance of 14,375,000 and 31,578,900 shares of common
stock in May and October 2001, respectively.

The loss from discontinued operations, described below, was $664 million after-tax, or $1.62 per diluted share in the first nine months of 2002 versus $551
million after-tax, or $1.58 per diluted share in the first nine months of 2001.

The net loss in the first nine months of 2002 was $572 million, or $1.40 per diluted share versus $597 million in the first nine months of 2001, or $1.71 per
diluted share. Excluding the Raytheon Aircraft charge and goodwill amortization, net income was $20 million in the first nine months of 2001, or $0.06 per
diluted share.

Total employment related to continuing operations was 76,800 at September 29, 2002 and 81,100 at December 31, 2001.

Electronic Systems had sales of $6.5 billion in the first nine months of 2002 compared with $6.0 billion in the first nine months of 2001. The increase in
sales was due to higher volume across all business units. Operating income was $910 million or 13.9 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 versus $787
million or 13.2 percent of sales a year ago. Excluding goodwill amortization, operating income was $932 million or 15.6 percent of sales in the first nine months
of 2001. Included in operating income was



pension income of $33 million and $113 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in operating income was primarily due to
lower pension income offset by higher volume.

Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems had sales of $3.0 billion in the first nine months of 2002 compared with $2.7 billion in the
first nine months of 2001. The first nine months of 2002 included approximately $71 million of sales which were reclassified from Electronic Systems to
Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems in connection with the formation of Thales Raytheon Systems in 2001. In addition, there was
higher volume across all business units. Operating income was $309 million or 10.2 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 compared with $273 million
or 10.0 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, operating income was $349 million or 12.8 percent of sales in the first
nine months of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $5 million and $31 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The decrease in operating income was primarily due to the third quarter 2002 contract charges described above, cost growth on certain programs, and lower
pension income offset by higher volume.

Technical Services had sales of $1.6 billion in the first nine months of 2002 versus $1.5 billion in the first nine months of 2001. The increase in sales was
primarily due to higher volume from new programs. Operating income was $86 million or 5.4 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2002 compared with
$115 million or 7.6 percent of sales in the first nine months of 2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, operating income was $136 million or 9.0 percent of sales
in the first nine months of 2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $9 million and $26 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in operating income was due primarily to a $28 million write-off of contract costs in the second quarter of 2002 that the Company
determined were unbillable. The decrease was offset by a similarly sized reserve at corporate established by the Company in the second half of 2001 to address
the issue.

Commercial Electronics had sales of $306 million in the first nine months of 2002 compared with $339 million in the first nine months of 2001. The
decrease in sales was due to further weakness in Commercial Electronics end markets and to the divestiture of the recreational marine business in January 2001.
The operating loss of $12 million in the first nine months of 2002 compares to $43 million in the first nine months of 2001. Excluding goodwill amortization, the
operating loss was $37 million in the first nine months of 2001. The decrease in the operating loss was due primarily to the closure of certain unprofitable
businesses and cost reduction actions taken. Included in the operating losses was pension income of $1 million and $4 million in the first nine months of 2002 and
2001, respectively. The Company remains concerned about the market outlook for Commercial Electronics.

Raytheon Aircraft had sales of $1.5 billion in the first nine months of 2002 compared with $1.9 billion in the first nine months of 2001. The decrease was
due to lower aircraft deliveries in the first nine months of 2002, the divestiture of a majority interest in the Company’s aviation support business in June 2001, and
the divestiture of a majority interest in the Company’s fractional ownership business in March 2002. The operating loss of $18 million in the first nine months of
2002 compares to $735 million in the first nine months of 2001. Included in the first nine months of 2001 was a charge of $693 million related to the commuter
aircraft business and $52 million to write down the value



of certain used general aviation aircraft. Excluding these charges and goodwill amortization, there was operating income of $16 million in the first nine months of
2001. Included in operating income was pension income of $23 million and $43 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The increase in
the operating loss was primarily due to lower pension income and lower volume. The increase was partially offset by cost reductions and a $15 million favorable
contract adjustment recorded in the second quarter of 2002. The Company remains concerned about the market outlook for both new and used aircraft and
continues to monitor the production and delivery schedule for the Premier I aircraft and the development cost and certification and delivery schedule of the
Horizon aircraft. Demand for general aviation aircraft remains weak and could adversely affect volume estimates for the remainder of 2002 and 2003.

Backlog consisted of the following at:

Sept. 29, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001

(In millions)

Electronic Systems $ 13,345 $ 13,423
Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems 5,709 5,592
Technical Services 1,694 1,958
Commercial Electronics 409 467
Aircraft 4,423 4,165

Total $ 25,580 $ 25,605
U.S. government backlog included above $ 17,986 $ 16,943

Included in Aircraft backlog at September 29, 2002 was approximately $850 million related to an order received from Flight Options, a related entity, in the
first quarter of 2002.

Bookings were as follows:

Nine Months Ended

Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001

(In millions)

Electronic Systems $ 6,264 $ 5,281
Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems 3,217 2,811
Technical Services 831 683
Commercial Electronics 171 249
Aircraft 1,729 1,715

Total $ 12,212 $ 10,739

Significant bookings in the first nine months of 2002 include the U.S. Navy’s contract award for the DD(X) program of $1.1 billion at Electronic Systems
and the National Polar-orbiting Operational Environmental Satellite System of $900 million at Command, Control, Communication and Information Systems.



Discontinued Operations

In March 2002, the Company completed the sale of AIS for approximately $1,123 million, net, subject to purchase price adjustments. As part of the
transaction, the Company remained the prime contractor for the Airborne Stand-Off Radar (ASTOR) program and retained the responsibility for performance of
the Boeing Business Jet (BBJ) program, which is nearing completion. The Company also retained $106 million of BBJ-related assets, $18 million of receivables
and other assets, and rights to a $25 million jury award related to a 1999 claim against Learjet. As of September 29, 2002, the balance of the retained assets was
$83 million. Schedule delays, cost growth, and other variables could continue to have a negative effect on these retained assets. The timing and amount of net
realizable value of these retained assets are uncertain and subject to a number of unpredictable market forces. The Company recorded a net $2 million pretax gain
on the sale of AIS. Due to the non-deductible goodwill associated with AIS, the Company recorded a tax provision of $213 million, resulting in a $211 million
net loss on the sale of AIS.

The Company recorded a $5 million charge in the third quarter of 2002 and a $4 million charge in the second quarter of 2002 for cost growth on one of the
two BBJ aircraft not yet delivered. Also in the second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded an additional loss on disposal of AIS of $14 million, which
included a $23 million write-down of a BBJ-related aircraft owned by the Company offset by a $13 million gain resulting from the finalization of the 1999 claim,
described above. The write-down of the BBJ-related aircraft resulted from the Company’s decision to market this aircraft unfinished due to the current
environment of declining prices for BBJ-related aircraft. The Company was previously marketing this aircraft as a customized executive BBJ.

In 2000, the Company sold its Raytheon Engineers & Constructors (RE&C) business to Washington Group International (WGI). At the time of the sale, the
Company had, either directly or through a subsidiary that it still owns, outstanding letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees of performance and
payment (the “Support Agreements”) on over 100 long-term construction contracts. The Support Agreements were provided to owners at the time of contract
award as security to the owners for the underlying contract obligations. Often the total security was capped at the value of the contract price to secure full
performance, including the payment of liquidated damages available under the contract. Some of these contingent obligations and guarantees include warranty
provisions and extend for a number of years.

In March 2001, WGI abandoned two Massachusetts construction projects, triggering the Company’s guarantees to the owners. The Company honored the
guarantees and commenced work on these projects. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company revised its estimated cost to complete (ETC) for the two projects
and recorded a charge of $74 million. The Company recorded a charge of $450 million in the second quarter of 2002 and a total charge of $814 million in 2001,
of which $633 million was recorded in the first nine months of 2001. The cost increases have resulted from declining productivity, schedule delays, misestimates
of field engineered materials, and unbudgeted hours worked on the two projects. In October 2002, the Company announced that the Company and its vendor were
pursuing a solution to fix a previously disclosed issue on turbines that developed on the two construction projects. The Company’s inability to solve the turbine-
related issues and recover turbine-related costs from the vendor in the



timeline outlined below or further deterioration in labor productivity could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.

Construction and start up activities continue on all areas of the two Massachusetts construction projects—the Mystic Station plant and the Fore River plant.
The significant milestones and expected dates related to the Mystic project include for Mystic Block 8, turbine retrofit in November 2002 and customer
acceptance in February 2003, and for Mystic Block 9, turbine retrofit in November 2002, first fire in December 2002, and customer acceptance in February 2003.
Pursuant to the contract, if the Mystic plant is not accepted by the customer by January 14, 2003, a liquidated damages payment of $68 million will be required.
This payment pre-funds the liquidated damages to the maximum amount specified by the contract. The ultimate cost impact is a function of the number of days
past January 14, 2003 a successful performance test takes place, at the contractual rate of $410,000 per day. The ETC for the Mystic plant does not include any
liquidated damages for turbine-related delays beyond January 16, 2003 since the Company believes the damages associated with the delay should be the
responsibility of the turbine vendor. The significant milestones related to the Fore River project include first fire in November 2002 and customer acceptance in
January 2003. Pursuant to the contract, if the Fore River plant is not accepted by the customer by February 25, 2003, a liquidated damages payment of $60
million will be required to pre-fund the liquidated damages to the maximum amount specified by the contract. The ultimate cost impact is a function of the
number of days past February 25, 2003 a successful performance test takes place, at the contractual rate of $180,000 per day. In both cases, the Company expects
to recover the difference between the pre-funded payment and the actual liquidated damages incurred based on successful completion of performance testing.

In May 2001, WGI filed for bankruptcy protection. In the course of the bankruptcy proceeding, WGI rejected some ongoing construction contracts and
assumed others. For those contracts rejected, the Company’s obligation to the owners depends on the extent to which the Company has any outstanding Support
Agreements. The WGI rejected contracts included four large fixed price international turnkey projects that were close to completion. As of November 1, 2002,
construction has been completed on the projects and they are now in the commercial close out and claims resolution phase. The Company recorded a charge of $4
million in the third quarter of 2002 and $14 million in the second quarter of 2002 related to warranty and startup costs associated with the last project to be
completed. In 2001, the Company recorded a total charge of $54 million, all of which was recorded in the first six months of 2001, related to these projects.
Additional risks and exposures on these projects are final resolution of commercial closeout and claims issues and collection of amounts due under the contracts.

There were also two large construction projects (Red Oak and Ilijan) on which the Company had Support Agreements that have been provisionally
accepted by the customer. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $14 million related to final reliability testing and punch list items. In the
second quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $21 million resulting from a contract adjustment on one of these projects due to turbine-related delays.
In 2001, the Company recorded a total charge of $156 million, of which $72 million was recorded in the first nine months of 2001, related to these and the other
WGI construction projects on which the Company has Support Agreements. Additional risks and exposures on the two large construction projects include
equipment and subcontractor performance, punch list and warranty closeout and performance, schedule and performance liquidated damages, final resolution



of contract closeout issues, and collection of amounts due under the contracts. Additional risks and exposures on the other projects and commercial undertakings
involving Support Agreements include potential adverse claims resolution, lease exposures, availability guarantees, warranties, and non-performance or defaults
on projects assumed by WGI which are subject to the letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees described above. At September 29, 2002, the
amount of letters of credit, performance bonds, and parent guarantees, for which there were stated values, that remained outstanding was $383 million, $351
million, and $26 million, respectively, related to discontinued operations, however, additional guarantees of project performance for which there is no stated value
also remain outstanding. Of these amounts, $50 million of letters of credit and $264 million of performance bonds relate to projects assumed by WGI post-
bankruptcy (see above). Some of these contingent obligations and guarantees include warranty provisions and extend for a number of years.

The Company’s cost estimates for construction projects are heavily dependent upon third parties, including WGI, and their ability to perform construction
management and other tasks that require industry expertise the Company no longer possesses. In addition, there are risks that the ultimate costs to complete and
close-out the projects will increase beyond the Company’s current estimates due to factors such as labor productivity and availability of labor, the nature and
complexity of the work to be performed, the impact of change orders, the recoverability of claims included in the ETC, and the outcome of defending claims
asserted against the Company. A significant change in an estimate on one or more of the projects could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position and results of operations.

In accordance with the purchase and sale agreement, the Company retained the financial risks and rewards of certain claims, equity investments, and
receivables totaling $159 million that were sold to WGI. In addition, the Company retained certain obligations and liabilities totaling $88 million related to the
purchase and sale agreement. As a result of WGI’s bankruptcy filing, the realization of these various assets through WGI was no longer probable, however, the
retained obligations and liabilities could be set off against the retained assets pursuant to the terms of the purchase and sale agreement. In the second quarter of
2001, the Company recorded a charge of $71 million to write off these assets and liabilities.

In the first nine months of 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $52 million for interest expense related to RE&C versus $8 million in the first nine
months of 2001. Interest expense has been allocated to RE&C based upon actual cash outflows since the date of disposition. In the first nine months of 2002, the
Company recorded charges of $29 million for legal, management, and other costs versus $6 million in the first nine months of 2001.

Liabilities from discontinued operations included current liabilities for RE&C of $380 million and $482 million at September 29, 2002 and December 31,
2001, respectively.

In the third quarter of 2002, the total loss from discontinued operations was $125 million pretax, $81 million after-tax, or $0.20 per diluted share versus $15
million pretax, $5 million after-tax, or $0.01 per diluted share in the third quarter of 2001.



In the first nine months of 2002, the total loss from discontinued operations was $671 million pretax, $664 million after-tax, or $1.62 per diluted share
versus $854 million pretax, $551 million after-tax, or $1.58 per diluted share in the first nine months of 2001.

Net cash used in operating activities from discontinued operations was $758 million and $47 million related to RE&C and AIS, respectively, in the first
nine months of 2002 versus net cash used of $434 million and $20 million related to RE&C and AIS, respectively, in the first nine months of 2001. The Company
expects its operating cash flow to be negatively affected by approximately $1.1 billion (excluding the benefit of tax deductions for the Company) during 2002 and
$100 million during 2003 which includes project completion costs, legal and management costs, and interest related to RE&C. Further increases to project costs
may increase the estimated operating cash outflow for RE&C.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Net cash provided by operating activities was $197 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus net cash used of $509 million in the first nine months of
2001. Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations was $1,002 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus net cash used of $55
million in the first nine months of 2001. The improvement was due primarily to changes in inventory levels at Raytheon Aircraft, a $156 million tax refund
received in 2002 as a result of the change in tax law described above, and an $83 million receipt from the close out of the Company’s interest rate swaps,
described below.

Net cash provided by investing activities in the first nine months of 2002 was $715 million versus net cash used of $163 million in the first nine months of
2001. Origination of financing receivables in the first nine months of 2002 was $257 million versus $480 million in the first nine months of 2001. Sale of
financing receivables, net of repurchases included sales of $282 million and repurchases of $328 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus sales of $636
million and repurchases of $250 million in the first nine months of 2001. Capital expenditures were $286 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus $292
million in the first nine months of 2001. Capital expenditures for the full year 2002 are expected to be approximately $450 million. Expenditures for internal use
software were $94 million and $106 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. Expenditures for internal use software are expected to be
approximately $115 million in 2002 as the Company continues to convert significant portions of its existing financial systems to a new integrated financial
package. In March 2002, the Company received $134 million from Hughes Electronics representing the balance due on an October 2001 settlement regarding the
purchase price adjustment related to the Company’s merger with the defense business of Hughes Electronics (Hughes Defense). Proceeds from sales of operating
units and investments were $1,166 million and $266 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Net cash used in financing activities was $1,507 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus net cash provided of $380 million in the first nine months
of 2001. Dividends paid to stockholders were $240 million and $208 million in the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. The quarterly dividend rate
was $0.20 per share for the first three quarters of 2002 and 2001.



In the first nine months of 2002 total debt decreased by $1,461 million versus $641 million in the first nine months of 2001. Payments on the outstanding
lines of credit were $140 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus borrowings of $500 million in the first nine months of 2001. There were maturities of the
current portion of long-term debt of $1,200 million in the first nine months of 2002 versus $512 million in the first nine months of 2001. In addition, the
Company repurchased debt with a par value of $96 million and $633 million for the first nine months of 2002 and 2001, respectively. In May 2001, the Company
issued 17,250,000 equity security units with net proceeds of $837 million and 14,375,000 shares of common stock with net proceeds of $376 million.

In March 2002, the Company formed a joint venture with Flight Options, Inc. whereby the Company contributed its Raytheon Travel Air fractional
ownership business and loaned the new entity $20 million. The Company’s investment in and other assets related to the joint venture totaled $83 million at
September 29, 2002. The new entity, Flight Options, LLC, has been pursuing additional equity financing, but has not yet been successful. In light of current
capital market conditions, there can be no assurance that Flight Options will ultimately be successful in attracting additional outside funding. If Flight Options is
not successful in this regard, the Company may offer to exchange the Flight Options debt it currently holds for additional equity in the joint venture, whereby the
Company could be responsible for its operations, own a majority of Flight Options, and consolidate Flight Options in its financial statements. If the Company
consolidates Flight Options, it is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations in 2002 or 2003, although the
Company would reduce its reported Aircraft backlog by approximately $850 million related to an order received from Flight Options in the first quarter of 2002.

The measurement date for the Company’s pension plans is October 31. Although the final calculation is not complete, the investment performance of the
Company’s pension plan assets for the year then ended is not expected to meet the Company’s long-term return on asset (ROA) assumption under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions (SFAS No. 87) of 9.5% per annum. The Company expects the actual ROA to be
approximately negative 5% for the twelve months ended October 31, 2002. Due to changes in the interest rate environment, the Company expects the discount
rate to be reduced to 7.0% from 7.25%. As a result, the company’s SFAS No. 87 pension expense is expected to be approximately $250 million in 2003 versus
pension income of $98 million in 2002. In addition, due to changes in the extended outlook of the investment markets, the Company is considering reducing its
long-term ROA assumption from 9.5%. Each 25 basis point reduction in the long-term ROA assumption will increase 2003 pension expense by approximately
$28 million. The lower actual ROA in 2002 will also increase the funding requirements of the pension plans and adversely affect operating cash flow by
approximately $180 million in 2004 and $50 million in 2005. Since pension funding requirements are generally recoverable costs under government contracting
regulations, the net cash flow impact of future increases in pension funding is estimated to be 20-25 percent of the funding requirement and is not considered to
be material to the liquidity or financial resources of the Company overall.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company expects to record an after-tax reduction to equity of between $2.0 billion and $2.5 billion related to the
Company’s pension plans as a result of the recent weak performance of capital markets. This is a non-cash reduction that will not affect the Company’s earnings,
net debt, or bank covenants.



Capital Structure and Resources

Total debt was $6.9 billion at September 29, 2002 compared with $8.2 billion at December 31, 2001. Cash and cash equivalents were $619 million at
September 29, 2002 and $1.2 billion at December 31, 2001. Total debt, as a percentage of total capital, was 37.0 percent at September 29, 2002 versus 40.4
percent at December 31, 2001.

In 2001, the Company entered into various interest rate swaps that corresponded to a portion of the Company’s fixed rate debt in order to effectively hedge
interest rate risk. The $1.2 billion notional value of the interest rate swaps effectively converted approximately 15 percent of the Company’s total debt to variable
rate debt. In the third quarter of 2002, the Company closed out these interest rate swaps in order to reduce market rate risk. The swaps had a fair value of $95
million and received proceeds of $83 million in the third quarter of 2002, with the balance received in the fourth quarter of 2002. The $95 million of value will be
amortized over the remaining life of the debt as a reduction to interest expense.

The Company’s most restrictive bank agreement covenant is an interest coverage ratio that currently requires earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
and amortization (EBITDA), excluding certain charges, be at least 2.5 times net interest expense for the prior four quarters. In July 2002, the covenant was
amended to exclude charges of $450 million related to discontinued operations. The Company was in compliance with the interest coverage ratio covenant, as
amended, during the first nine months of 2002.

Lines of credit with certain commercial banks exist to provide short-term liquidity. The lines of credit bear interest based upon LIBOR and were $2.3
billion at September 29, 2002 and $2.4 billion at December 31, 2001. There were no borrowings under these lines of credit at September 29, 2002. There was
$140 million outstanding under these lines of credit at December 31, 2001.

The outstanding balance in the Company’s off balance sheet receivables facility was $1,115 million at September 29, 2002 and $1,448 million at December
31, 2001. The decline has primarily resulted from repurchases and restructurings of commuter aircraft receivables consistent with the charge taken in the third
quarter of 2001. Since the financing facility no longer provides any real economic benefit, the Company has decided to buy out this facility, eliminate the cost of
maintaining it, and bring the related assets onto the Company’s books. This will result in an increase to consolidated debt of approximately $1 billion (and a
reduction in off balance sheet obligations of approximately $1 billion) and will not violate the Company’s bank agreement covenants.

In 1995, through the acquisition of E-Systems, Inc., the Company invested in Space Imaging and currently has a 31 percent equity investment in Space
Imaging LLC. Since 1996, the Company has guaranteed a portion of Space Imaging’s debt and currently guarantees 50 percent of a $300 million Space Imaging
loan facility that matures in March 2003. There were $275 million of Space Imaging borrowings outstanding under this facility at September 29, 2002. To date,
Space Imaging has purchased a significant amount of equipment from its primary investors, including the Company. The Company’s investment in and other
assets related to Space Imaging totaled $71 million at September 29, 2002. Space Imaging is pursuing its business plan, including assessments relative to future
investment in a replacement satellite system



and related funding requirements. To execute its current business plan and fund future replacement satellites, Space Imaging will likely need to obtain long-term
commitments and funding from the U.S. government for purchases of commercial satellite imagery, as well as commitments for additional investment or funding,
none of which are committed at present. In light of current market conditions and those uncertainties, there can be no assurance that Space Imaging will be
successful in attracting the necessary additional funding. If the long-term commitments and additional investment or funding do not materialize, the Company
could be required to fund all or part of its obligation under the guarantee and record a charge to earnings to the extent that any amounts invested, advanced, or
paid under the guarantee are not realizable.

The Company’s need for, cost of, and access to funds are dependent on future operating results, as well as conditions external to the Company. Cash and
cash equivalents, cash flow from operations, sale of financing receivables, proceeds from divestitures, and other available financing resources are expected to be
sufficient to meet anticipated operating, capital expenditure, and debt service requirements.

Accounting Standards

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities (SFAS No. 146) which nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). This accounting standard, which is effective for
restructuring activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities.
The adoption of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements
No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (SFAS No. 145). This accounting standard, which is effective for fiscal
years beginning after May 15, 2002, requires, among other things, that debt extinguishments used as a part of an entity’s risk management strategy no longer meet
the criteria for classification as extraordinary items. The adoption of SFAS No. 145 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets (SFAS No. 142). This accounting standard addresses financial accounting and reporting for goodwill and other intangible assets and requires that goodwill
amortization be discontinued and replaced with periodic tests of impairment. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and is
required to be applied at the beginning of the fiscal year. Impairment losses that arise due to the initial application of this standard are required to be reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill amortization was discontinued as of January 1, 2002. In the first quarter of 2002, the Company recorded a
goodwill impairment of $360 million related to AIS as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. Due to the non-deductibility of this goodwill, the
Company did not record a tax benefit in connection with this impairment. During the second quarter of 2002, the Company completed its transitional review for
potential goodwill impairment in accordance with



SFAS No. 142. As a result, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $185 million pretax, $149 million after-tax, which represented all of the goodwill at
Raytheon Aircraft, as a camulative effect of change in accounting principle. The Company also determined that there was no impairment of goodwill related to
any of its defense businesses beyond the $360 million recorded in connection with the sale of AIS. The total goodwill impairment charge for the nine months
ended September 29, 2002 was $545 million pretax, $509 million after-tax, or $1.25 per diluted share.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report, including any statements relating to the Company’s future plans, objectives, and projected future financial
performance, contain or are based on, forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Specifically,
statements that are not historical facts, including statements accompanied by words such as “believe,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,”or “outlook,”
variations of these words and similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking statements and convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes.
The Company cautions readers that any such forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable, but are subject to a
wide-range of risks, and actual results may differ materially. Given these uncertainties, readers should not rely on forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements also represent the Company’s estimates and assumptions only as of the date that they were made. The Company expressly disclaims any current
intention to provide updates to forward-looking statements, and the estimates and assumptions associated with them, after the date of this report. Important factors
that could cause actual results to differ include, but are not limited to: differences in anticipated and actual program results; risks inherent with large long-term
fixed price contracts, particularly the ability to contain cost growth; the ultimate resolution of contingencies and legal matters, including investigations; risks
associated with equity investments in third party or joint ventures; the ability to realize anticipated cost efficiencies; timely development and certification of new
aircraft; the effect of market conditions, particularly in relation to the general aviation and commuter aircraft markets; the impact of changes in the collateral
values of financed aircraft, particularly commuter aircraft; the ability to finance ongoing operations at attractive rates; government customers’ budgetary
constraints; government import and export policies and other government regulations; termination of government contracts; financial and governmental risks
related to international transactions; the ability to recruit and retain qualified employees; delays and uncertainties regarding the timing of the award of
international programs; changes in government or customer priorities due to program reviews or revisions to strategic objectives; difficulties in developing and
producing operationally advanced technology systems; economic, business, and political conditions domestically and internationally; program performance and
timing of contract payments; the performance of critical subcontractors and the ability to obtain adequate insurance; the timing and customer acceptance of
product deliveries; the impact of competitive products and pricing; the uncertainty of the timing and amount of net realizable value of Boeing Business Jet-related
assets; the performance of critical subcontractors and suppliers; the timing of project completion and customer acceptance of two Massachusetts construction
projects; the timing and cost associated with the ultimate resolution of turbine combustor issues at the two Massachusetts construction projects; the Company’s
lack of construction industry expertise resulting from the Company’s sale of Raytheon Engineers and Constructors; the continued decline of craft labor
productivity at the two Massachusetts construction projects; and the Company’s
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inability to recover amounts required to be paid in connection with pre-funded liquidated damages; among other things. Further information regarding the factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company’s projected results can be found in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including “Item 1—Business” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT FINANCIAL MARKET RISKS

The following discussion covers quantitative and qualitative disclosures about the Company’s market risk. The Company’s primary market exposures are to
interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The Company meets its working capital requirements with a combination of variable rate short-term and fixed rate long-term financing. The Company
enters into interest rate swap agreements with commercial and investment banks primarily to manage interest rates associated with the Company’s financing
arrangements. The Company also enters into foreign currency forward contracts with commercial banks only to fix the dollar value of specific commitments and
payments to international vendors and the value of foreign currency denominated receipts. The market-risk sensitive instruments used by the Company for
hedging are entered into with commercial and investment banks and are directly related to a particular asset, liability, or transaction for which a firm commitment
is in place. As discussed above, the Company has used a special purpose entity to sell aircraft receivables (described in Note 4—Other Assets) and retains a
partial interest that includes servicing rights, interest only strips, and subordinated certificates.

Financial instruments held by the Company which are subject to interest rate risk include notes payable, long-term debt, long-term receivables,
investments, and interest rate swap agreements. The aggregate hypothetical loss in earnings for one year of those financial instruments held by the Company at
September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001, which are subject to interest rate risk resulting from a hypothetical increase in interest rates of 10 percent, was $1
million and $5 million, respectively, after-tax. The hypothetical loss was determined by calculating the aggregate impact of a 10 percent increase in the interest
rate of each variable rate financial instrument held by the Company at September 29, 2002 and September 30, 2001, which was subject to interest rate risk. Fixed
rate financial instruments were not evaluated, as the risk exposure is not material.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Within 90 days prior to the filing date of this report, Raytheon management conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
are effective in alerting them in a timely manner to material information required to be included in the Company’s SEC reports. In addition, Raytheon
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, reviewed our internal controls, and there have been no significant changes in the
Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect those controls subsequent to the date of our last evaluation.



PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a party to or has property subject to litigation and other proceedings referenced in “Note 12—Commitments and Contingencies” of the
Notes to Financial Statements (Unaudited) included in this Form 10-Q and in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001, or arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, except as otherwise indicated in the Form 10-K, it is unlikely that the outcome
of any such litigation or other proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

See the “Legal Proceedings” section of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 for a detailed description of
previously filed actions.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing products and services under contracts with the U.S. government and, to a lesser degree, under direct
foreign sales contracts, some of which are funded by the U.S. government. These contracts are subject to extensive legal and regulatory requirements and, from
time to time, agencies of the U.S. government investigate whether the Company’s operations are being conducted in accordance with these requirements.
Agencies which oversee contract performance include: the Defense Contract Audit Agency, the Department of Defense Inspector General, the General
Accounting Office, the Department of Justice, and Congressional Committees. U.S. government investigations of the Company, whether relating to these
contracts or conducted for other reasons, could result in administrative, civil, or criminal liabilities, including repayments, fines or penalties being imposed upon
the Company, the suspension of government export licenses, or the suspension or debarment from future U.S. government contracting. U.S. government
investigations often take years to complete and many result in no adverse action against the Company.

Previously Reported Matters

As previously reported, in June 2001, a purported class action lawsuit entitled, Muzinich & Co., Inc. et al v. Raytheon Company, et. al., (Civil Action No.
01-0284-S-BLW) was filed in federal court in Boise, Idaho allegedly on behalf of all purchasers of common stock or senior notes of WGI during the period April
17, 2000 through March 1, 2001 (the class period). The putative plaintiff class claims to have suffered harm by purchasing WGI securities because the Company
and certain of its officers allegedly violated federal securities laws by purportedly misrepresenting the true financial condition of RE&C in order to sell RE&C to
WGI at an artificially inflated price. An amended complaint was filed on October 1, 2001 alleging similar claims. The Company and the individual defendants
filed a motion seeking to dismiss the action in mid-November 2001. On April 30, 2002, the Court denied the Company’s and the individual defendants’ motion to
dismiss the complaint. Thereafter, the defendants filed a petition with the District Court requesting permission to seek an immediate appeal of the District Court’s
decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, which the District Court granted on July 1, 2002. In August 2002, the Ninth Circuit issued an
order denying the petition for interlocutory appeal. Defendants have filed their answer to the amended complaint and discovery is under way.

As previously reported, the Company has been named as a nominal defendant and



members of its Board of Directors and several current and former officers have been named as defendants in another purported shareholder derivative action
entitled Richard J. Kager v. Daniel P. Burnham, et. al., (Civil Action No. 01-11180-JLT) filed in July 2001 in the U. S. District Court in Massachusetts. The
Kager derivative complaint contains allegations similar to those included in the Muzinich complaint, and further alleges that the individual defendants breached
fiduciary duties to the Company and purportedly failed to maintain systems necessary for prudent management and control of the Company’s operations. On June
28, 2002, all of the defendants in the Kager matter filed a motion to dismiss the complaint. In September 2002, the plaintiff agreed voluntarily to dismiss this
action without prejudice so that the plaintiff may re-file the action in Delaware.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Exhibits

10 Transition Agreement between Raytheon Company and Francis S. Marchilena dated September 3, 2002.

12 Statement Regarding Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends.

99.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
99.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
On August 14, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

On August 30, 2002, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission.



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

RAYTHEON COMPANY

(Registrant)
By: /s/ FRANKLYN A. CAINE
Franklyn A. Caine
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
By: /s/  EDWARD S. PLINER

Edward S. Pliner
Vice President and
Corporate Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)

November 6, 2002



CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Daniel P. Burnham, certify that:
1) T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Raytheon Company;

2) Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
quarterly report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this
quarterly report (the “Evaluation Date”), and

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation
as of the Evaluation Date;

5) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls; and



6) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

By: /s/  DANIEL P. BURNHAM

Daniel P. Burnham
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

November 6, 2002



CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Franklyn A. Caine, certify that:
1) T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Raytheon Company;

2) Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
quarterly report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this
quarterly report (the “Evaluation Date”), and

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation
as of the Evaluation Date;

5) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
controls; and



6) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

By: /s/ FRANKLYN A. CAINE

Franklyn A. Caine
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

November 6, 2002
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10 Transition Agreement between Raytheon Company and Francis S. Marchilena dated September 3, 2002.
12 Statement Regarding Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends.
99.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
99.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 10

August 29, 2002
Mr. Francis S. Marchilena

Re: Transition Agreement
Dear Frank:

Please accept this letter confirming the understandings we have reached with respect to your continued employment with Raytheon Company, your
resignation as an officer of Raytheon Company effective at the start of your Transition Period, your agreement to participate in Raytheon’s Construction
Management Program, and your transition to retirement.

1. Construction Management Program. You have agreed to lead Raytheon’s efforts to complete the Fore River and Mystic Station power plant projects
through the Performance Test Completion Date (“Completion Date”). Although the construction of these plants is expected to be completed prior to December
31, 2002, you agree to continue to manage these projects through the Completion Date. The determination of the Completion Date shall be jointly agreed to
between you and a designated officer of the Company. Any dispute as to this date shall be resolved under the provisions of the arbitration procedures set forth in
paragraph 17 below. If, prior to the Completion Date, Raytheon terminates your services on the projects, or there is a change in control of the Company as that
term is defined in your Raytheon Company Change In Control Severance Agreement dated August 17, 2001, Raytheon’s commitments herein provided will
become due immediately.

2. Transition Period: Upon the occurrence of the Completion Date of the two above-noted power plant projects, you will begin a transition-to-retirement
period which shall continue for 104 weeks (hereinafter the “Transition Period”). During the Transition Period, you will be treated as an active employee and will
be paid your normal salary on a bi-weekly basis, and will participate in company-sponsored employee welfare and benefit plans and executive perquisites. At the
end of each fifty-two (52) week period during the Transition Period, you will receive a Results Based Incentive (RBI) Bonus at 100% of your 2002 RBI target.
Your base salary shall be fixed as of the date of this Agreement, and you will not be eligible to receive any merit increase or stock option awards subsequent to
that date.

3. Pension: For purposes of calculation of your pension under the provisions of the Raytheon Company Pension Plan for Salaried Employees (“Plan”),
you will



receive age and service recognition as if you were an active participant in the Plan through December 31, 2005. For the purpose of calculating your final average
earnings under the Plan, you will be treated as continuing as an active participant through December 31, 2004. In the event of your death prior to the end of the
Transition Period or prior to the commencement of your retirement payments, your surviving spouse shall receive retirement benefits in accordance with the
terms of the Plan as enhanced by the provisions regarding your age, service and final average earnings set forth in this paragraph.

4. Restricted Stock Award: The Management Development and Compensation Committee (MDCC) of Raytheon’s Board of Directors has awarded you
restricted shares valued at $643,452.08. The actual number of shares shall be determined by the fair market value of Raytheon Common Stock on the day of
approval of the grant by the MDCC. The restrictions on these restricted shares shall lapse as of the Completion Date of the projects listed in paragraph 1 of this
Agreement.

5. Restricted Stock Acceleration: Effective upon the occurrence of the Completion Date, the restrictions on the 50,000 restricted shares previously issued
to you shall lapse.

6. Results Based Incentive: 2002: You will be eligible to receive a Results Based Incentive Bonus for 2002 based on established performance metrics and
senior executive discretion.

7. Personal Time Off (“PTO”): You will be paid your unused accrued PTO at the end of the Transition Period. You will not accrue any PTO during the
Transition Period.

8. Stock Options: You will not be eligible for a Stock Option Award during the Transition Period. For purposes of vesting and exercise periods under the
Stock Option Plans, you will be considered an active employee through the end of the Transition Period. At the end of the Transition Period, you will be eligible
to exercise any vested options pursuant to the Stock Option Plan provisions relating to retired employees.

9. General Release: You agree to execute two General Releases in exchange for the consideration contained in this Transition Agreement. The first
General Release, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, waives any claim against Raytheon Company, as defined in the General Release,
which occurred prior to the execution of this Transition Agreement. The second General Release shall be executed as of the end of the Transition Period, in
consideration for and as a condition precedent of the lapse of restrictions on the Restricted Stock Award set forth in paragraph 4. This second General Release
shall waive any claim against Raytheon arising during the Transition Period, including any claim relating to the circamstances of your separation from Raytheon.
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10. Litigation Cooperation: You agree that, in the event that Raytheon Company becomes a party in any legal or administrative proceeding or asserted
claim relating to events which occurred during your employment, you will cooperate to the fullest extent reasonably possible in the preparation and presentation
by Raytheon Company in the prosecution or defense, including without limitation the execution of affidavits or other documents providing information requested
by Raytheon Company. In the event that such litigation cooperation would be expected to require an appreciable period of time, which would result in any out-of-
pocket cost or lost economic opportunity on your part, the Company agrees to discuss at that time an appropriate fee to offset such costs.

11. Ethics Compliance: You hereby represent and warrant that, to the best of your knowledge, you have complied in full with all Raytheon Company
policies related to ethics, and have disclosed to Raytheon Company all matters which were required to be disclosed by said policies. In particular, you represent
and warrant that, to the best of your knowledge except as so disclosed by you, you have no information which you believe could be the basis for any charge of a
violation of law by Raytheon Company or persons associated with Raytheon Company, including but not limited to violations of the False Claims Act or any
federal or state environmental statute.

12. Security Clearance: In the course of your employment at Raytheon Company, you may have come into possession of or exposure to matters due to
your security clearance. Raytheon Company reminds you that disclosure of any information which came to you as a result of your security clearance, including
work product, company plans and other matters, shall not be discussed or revealed in any way, except if required to do so pursuant to a proceeding instituted by
an appropriate government agency or at the request of an authorized company agent.

13. Confidential and Proprietary Information: You agree to keep all confidential and proprietary information of the Company, its subsidiaries and
affiliated companies, including joint venture partners, strictly confidential except to the extent disclosure is required by law or court order, except to the extent
that such confidential and proprietary information has become public through no fault of your own.

14. Confidentiality of This Agreement: You and Raytheon Company mutually agree to keep the terms and conditions of this Agreement confidential and
will not disclose the terms hereof to anyone, except to immediate family members, tax accountants, lawyers, financial advisors, the Internal Revenue Service or
any other taxing authority, and the Division of Employment and Training in connection with any application you may make for unemployment compensation
benefits, and/or others who have a reasonable need to know the terms hereof.

15. Insider Information: 1In the course of your responsibilities you may constitute an “insider” for securities law purposes. We would like to remind you
that any financial plan, program, estimate or matter not readily available to the general public shall be kept in strictest confidence and may not be disclosed or
discussed.



16. Non-Disparagement Agreement: You and Raytheon Company mutually agree not to disparage one another. Raytheon Company, its officers, directors
and employees, and you shall have the right to make truthful responses to any charges, accusations or allegations, and no such response shall be considered a
breach of this non-disparagement agreement.

17. Arbitration: Any dispute arising under this Agreement shall be settled exclusively through arbitration. Such arbitration shall be conducted in
accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association before a panel of three arbitrators sitting in a city to be determined by mutual agreement. The
decision of the arbitration panel shall be final and binding on both parties. Judgment may be entered on the award of the arbitrators in any court having proper
jurisdiction.

18. Entirety of Agreement: This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, written or oral, between Raytheon Company and you relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement. Your acceptance of the benefits contained in this Agreement as evidenced by your signature below shall constitute a disclaimer
of any entitlement you previously had to severance benefits under the terms of the Raytheon Company Change in Control Severance Agreement dated August 17,
2001. This Agreement may not be modified, changed or discharged, in whole or in part, except by an agreement in writing signed by the Company and you.

You understand that, if you elect to revoke the Release attached hereto within seven (7) days after its execution, this letter Agreement shall be null and void
and each party will have all rights and obligations afforded them under the law as if this Letter Agreement had not been signed by the parties and as if the Release
had never been signed by you. You agree, in the event of revocation of the Release, to immediately return any consideration received in support of said Release.

If you have any questions about this Agreement, please contact me.

Sincerely,
/s/  KEITH J. PEDEN
Keith J. Peden
Senior Vice President, Human Resources
ACCEPTED:
/s/  FRANCIS S. MARCHILENA Date: 9/3/02

Francis S. Marchilena



GENERAL RELEASE

I agree to accept the benefits and payments set forth in the immediately preceding Letter Agreement as full satisfaction in all respects of any and all
obligations of any kind which might otherwise be due me from Raytheon Company. I hereby specifically waive, remise, release and forever discharge Raytheon
Company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, officers, employees, agents and successors (hereinafter referred to as “Raytheon”) from all manner of claims,
liabilities, demands and causes of action, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, which I may have or claim to have against Raytheon as a result of my
employment and the termination thereof, and do hereby covenant not to file or commence a lawsuit or administrative proceeding against Raytheon to assert any
such claims. I understand that this General Release encompasses all claims arising under federal, state or local law, including but not limited to claims under the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”) or claims arising under any theory of wrongful discharge. This General Release is binding upon my
successors, heirs, executors and administrators but does not waive any rights or claims which relate to events occurring after the date this General Release is
executed.

I understand and agree that, under the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act of 1990 (“Act”), this waiver of rights under ADEA must be knowing and
voluntary and that, by execution of this General Release, I acknowledge that the following requirements of the Act to insure that such a waiver is knowing and
voluntary have been met:

(a) The waiver is part of an agreement between me and Raytheon, and I understand the impact of this waiver;

(b) The waiver specifically refers to rights or claims arising under ADEA;

(c) T am not waiving rights or claims that may arise after the date the waiver is executed;

(d) My waiver of rights or claims is in exchange for consideration in addition to anything of value to which I am already entitled;
(e) I have been advised to consult with an attorney prior to executing this General Release;

(f) Tunderstand that I am to be given a period of twenty-one days within which to consider the General Release; and

(g) If this General Release is executed, I understand that I may revoke the General Release during the seven-day period following its execution and
that the General Release shall not become effective or enforceable until the revocation period has expired.



I have read carefully and fully understand all the provisions of this General Release, including my rights under the Act. I acknowledge that this General
Release sets forth the entire agreement between me and Raytheon with respect to additional consideration being provided to me and that I have not relied upon
any representation or statement, written or oral, not set forth in this document.

Francis S. Marchilena

Date:




Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes per
statements of income

Add:

Fixed charges

Amortization of capitalized interest

Less:

Capitalized interest

Income as adjusted

Fixed charges:
Portion of rents representative of interest factor
Interest costs
Capitalized interest
Fixed charges
Equity security distributions

Combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock
dividends

RAYTHEON COMPANY
STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES
AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS
(dollar amounts in millions except for ratio)
(excludes RE&C for all periods except for interest, which includes RE&C)
(excludes AIS for all periods except for 1997, includes AIS interest for all periods)(1)

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12

Nine Months Ended

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 Sept. 29, 2002 Sept. 30, 2001
$ 760 $1,579 $ 961 $ 837  $112 $ 862 (147)
429 813 859 876 807 509 622
2 2 2 2 2 1 2

4 2 2 2 1 — 1
$1,187  $2,392  $1,820 $1,713  $920 $ 1372 $ 476
$ 28 $ 72 $ 117 $ 95 $ 92 $ 69 $ 69
397 739 740 779 714 440 552
4 2 2 2 1 — 1
429 813 859 876 807 509 622
— — — — 78(2) 12 13
$ 429 $ 813 $ 859 $ 876  $885 $ 521§ 635
2.8 2.9 2.1 2.0 1.0 2.6 0.7

(1) The ratios for all periods presented, except for 1997, have been restated to exclude AIS, which was sold in the first quarter of 2002 and is included in
discontinued operations. The Company determined that it was impracticable to exclude AIS in 1997 due to the significant acquisitions, divestitures, and

reorganizations that occurred during 1997.

(2) Earnings of $78 million were required to cover $7 million of equity security distributions because the Company's effective tax rate for the year ended

December 31, 2001 was 91.1 percent.



Exhibit 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Raytheon Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 29, 2002 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Daniel P. Burnham, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ DANIEL P. BURNHAM

Daniel P. Burnham
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

November 6, 2002



Exhibit 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Raytheon Company (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 29, 2002 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Franklyn A. Caine, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ FRANKLYN A. CAINE

Franklyn A. Caine
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

November 6, 2002



